DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD

MEETING AGENDA
Monday, May 12, 2025
6:00 p.m. - Hybrid Meeting

Topic: Ludlow Development Review Board - Hybrid

Log-In Online May 12, 2025 at 17:45 Eastern Time (US and Canada)

Join Zoom Meeting: Ludlow Development Review Board Zoom Link - May 12, 2025

Meeting ID: 960 3551 7223
Passcode: 153190

MEMBERS PRESENT:
George Tucker, Jr. - Chair Phil Carter
John Boehrer Julie Nicoll
STAFF PRESENT:
Rose Goings Jarrod Jowdy
OTHERS PRESENT:
Eric Alden Anne Guest
Keith Arlund Giff Hummel
Scott Baitz Joe Karl
George Benson Adam Karle
Mary Benson Elizabeth Karle
Ben Bolen Nadine Lynch
Ned Bowen Tim Meckel

I. CALL TO ORDER - Roll Call

Doug Sheehan

Lisha Klaiber

Nicholas Nitsche
Ted Reeves

Josh Sapp
Huseyin Sevincgil
Jean Strong
Sherry Tucker
Atta Ullah

1. George Tucker, Chair, opened the meeting at 6:00 p.m., all members present

II. CHANGES TO AGENDA

1. No changes were needed



DRB Preliminary Minutes 2
May 12, 2025

II1. OPEN THE RECESSED PUBLIC HEARING FOR SHAW'S SUPERMARKET

W

George Tucker advised that this application is for the recessed hearing for Shaw's Supermarkets
for further evidence regarding the addition of Mart-Carts and Flood-proofing status. This hearing
is Application# 88-221-CU/FHR and has been recessed from the meetings held on 12/18/23,
1/22/2024, 2/12/24, 3/11/24, 4/8/24, 6/10/24,8/12/24 and 9/23/2024, 12/9/2024, January 13,
2025,February 10,2025, March 10, 2025 and April 14, 2025 . He asked if anyone from Shaw's
was present to speak. George Tucker, Jr. reminded all who had spoken at a previous meeting that
they are still under oath.

George Tucker, Jr. said that additional documents were received today.

Nicholas Nitsche said that they has sent the board a copy of the FEMA certification that has been
stamped by himself, the structural and civil engineers. What remains is some of the documents
are still in draft and need to be updated to match the as-builts. We also have photos, the
inspection and owners’ maintenance manual.

George Tucker, Jr. asked when they may be able to submit them

Nicholas Nitsche said by mid to the end of next week.

Phil Carter asked them that when they receive the information, to please get it to the Planning and
Zoning office.

George Tucker, Jr. asked if 2 weeks would be sufficient to get the information to the Planning and
Zoning Office.

MOTION by George Tucker, Jr. and seconded by Doug Sheehan to close this hearing on

May 27, 2025. Motion passed unanimously.

IV. OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARINGS FOR REEVES CONSULTING, LLC

George Tucker advised that this is an application to install a platform tennis court set on a
concrete and wood column foundation.

Jarrod Jowdy advised that this is Application 094-95-PUD, Amendment #5 and 352-12-ACT250,
Amendment #1. Property owners are Tim and Ellen Meckel and the property is located at 11
Grouse Lane in the Solitude area of the Mountain Recreation District. Posted in the Town Hall
bulletin boards and on the website on April 16, 2025 and the Post Office Bulletin Board May 6,
2025, advertised in THE VERMONT JOURNAL on April 23, 2025 and abutting property owners
were notified on April 23, 2025. Letters have been received from Police, Ambulance and Fire
Departments.

George Tucker administered the oath to Ted Reeves and Tim Meckel.

Ted Reeves said that the application is for a permit to build a 30’ x 16’ platform with a 30” x 4’
walkway. He has included answers to the Local Act 250 questions. He has also included
information about the foundation, elevation, painting, netting and lighting.

Julie Nicoll said that the board had done a site visit.

Phil Carter asked if it would be heated.



DRB Preliminary Minutes 3
May 12, 2025

10.
I1.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

Ted Reeves said yes, there will be propane heaters under the platform - snow will melt to the

ground.

Phil Carter asked about lighting.

Ted Reeves said there will be 6, downlit, shielded lights with 20 high posts. He submitted a

cutsheet.

George Tucker, Jr. asked when they will use the lights

Ted Reeves said only when they are playing.

Phil Carter asked if there have been any comments from abutters.

Jarrod Jowdy said no.

Ted Reeves said no.

Tim Meckel said no

Doug Sheehan said how close is this to the neighbors

Ted Reeves said it is all within the building envelope.

Phil Carter asked if they have seen the letter from the Fire Chief

Ted Reeves said he has questions about how and when the contribution would be paid and where

it is codified. He said he will submit the Construction application.

Phil Carter asked about the letter from Chief Whalen and the conditions”
Approved construction, electrical and plumbing permits shall be obtained by the Vermont
Division of Fire Safety prior to any work. All noted conditions shall be met and the
project, construction and occupancy shall be compliant with the stated adopted edition of
NFPA1, NFPA101 and the Vermont Fire and Building Safety Code.

A 35 cent per square foot fee is required for the Ludlow Fire Department Equipment
Fund
Ted Reeves said we will comply, but that the Vermont Fire and Safety does not apply as this is
outdoor recreation
LOCAL ACT 250 Questions
a. Educational Services - Ted Reeves said this will not affect educational services
b. Municipal Services - Ted Reeves said he sent letters to the Ambulance, Fire Department
and Police Department.
c. Conformance with Regulations and Municipal Plan - Ted Reeves said this is nothing
outside of the intent of the rules
George Tucker, Jr. said the documents provided to board members included an index #1 - 40 . He
added that the Lighting cut sheet will be entered as #41.

MOTION by George Tucker., Jr. and seconded by Doug Sheehan to close this hearing.
Motion passed unanimously.

V. OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARINGS FOR ADAM KARLE

1.

George Tucker advised that this is an application for a Change of Use from an automotive sales
and service to a large format print shop and retail art gallery.



DRB Preliminary Minutes 4
May 12, 2025

2. Jarrod Jowdy advised that this is Application #040-92-CU, Amendment # 1 and #499-25-Act250
(#2S51035). Property is located at 16 Pond Street in the Village Residential Commercial District.
Property is owned by George Benson, Jr. Posted in the Town Hall bulletin boards and on the
website on April 16, 2025 and the Post Office Bulletin Board May 6, 2025, advertised in THE
VERMONT JOURNAL on April 23, 2025 and abutting property owners were notified on April
23, 2025. . Letters have been received from Police, Ambulance and Fire Departments.

3. George Tucker administered the oath to Adam Karle and George Benson, Jr.

4. Adam Karle said he has developed a business plan for a large format print shop and retail art
gallery. He said the building has road side exposure and the internal layout will not need
modifications. He quoted from his submittal:

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS REGARDING THE PROJECT:

The goal of this new business endeavor is to provide the Ludlow Community, Ludlow's
businesses, surrounding towns, and our visitors with an in-town option for large format
digital printing. With a goal to create aesthetically pleasing vehicle graphics, affordable
and reusable event banners, attractive business signage, large format artist prints, (and
more) ['ve developed a business plan for a minimally invasive, low impact approach to
step into an existing, under-utilized historic structure, to bring it back to life. With this
new business I have no plans to perform any changes/modifications to the interior or the
exterior of this piece of Ludlow history. The current interior layout is perfectly suitable
for the Sign Shop and Gallery I hope to open here. I do hope that my efforts to occupy
and utilize this space will eventually and maintain this beautiful old building.
Additionally, I plan to make this business available to students looking for internships to
learn the trade and develop their technical skills by using current design principles and
programs. I look forward to the prospective opportunity to join Ludlow's small business
community and appreciate your consideration of this proposal.

5. Julie Nicoll asked if Mr. Karle has read the ability to serve to serve letters from Fire and
Ambulance

6. George Tucker, Jr. asked if Mr. Karle is okay with the conditions.

7. Adam Karle said yes.

8. John Bohrer asked if he would be doing whole car wrapping.

9. Adam Karle said he has the ability to, but doesn’t expect to be doing many.

10. Phil Carter asked about the art gallery.

11. Adam Karle said he will be doing large format artist prints. He will have some already prepared
from photos.

12. Phil Carter asked about traffic and parking

13. Adam Karle said he has 4 spaces in the side entry and will utilize 2 spaces around the corner. He
hopes to retain the dealership spaces, they will be different from the occupied spaces.

14. Phil Carter said 6 spaces is good.

15. Adam Karle said the entry is not ADA and he will have to redo the front steps to put in a lift.

16. John Bohrer referred to the letter from the Police Chief, “Existing parking should hold 20
vehicles.”

17. Adam Karle said there are approximately 20 existing spaces, but he will only be using 4 to 6.



DRB Preliminary Minutes 5
May 12, 2025

18.
19.
20.
21.
22.

23.
24,

25.
26.
27.

28.
29.
30.
31.

32.

33.
34.

35.
36.

George Tucker, Jr. asked George Benson about losing spaces.

George Benson said he doesn;t want to lose the ability to use the lift, spaces for display.

John Bohrer asked if Adam Karle’s spaces would be in the front and Benson’s in the back
Doug Sheehan said there is one bay in the front

John Bohrer asked hours of operation. He explained that whatever hours Mr. Karle asks for
tonight will be part of the permit. If he ever wishes to increase/change them, he will have to
come back to this board. He said that Mr. Karle may ask for whatever he thinks might ever be
needed.

Julie Nicoll added that Mr. Karle would not have to be there, but could be

Adam Karle said 24/7 - he added that there may be projects when he will have to work all night.
He added that there will not be excessive noise.

Julie Nicoll asked about lighting
Adam Karle said that there will not be any additional lighting in the interior or exterior.

Phil Carter referred to the letter from Anne Bourakovsky at the State regarding hazardous waste -
a cpm

Adam Karle said he will not be producing hazardous waste

Phil Carter said a complaint had been received from a neighbor about burning oil on site.
George Benson said that has been all cleaned up

George Tucker, Jr. asked George Benson to give a copy of the ACT 250 permit for that building
to Adam Karle

George Benson said they did not have an ACT 250 permit for that building - only for the new
building,

Rgg said she can research if there ever was an ACT 250 permit for the building.

Phil Carter asked if there is anything in the ACT250 permit for the new building that reflects
across the street

Geogrge Benson said not that he is aware of.

MOTION by John Bohrer and seconded by Doug Sheehan to close this hearing. Motion

passed unanimously.

VI. OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARINGS FOR OKEMO TRAILSIDE COMMUNITY
ASSOCIATION, Inc

3.

George Tucker advised that this is an application to replace a community pool. He said index is
#1 - 58.

Jarrod Jowdy advised that this is Application 128-98-PUD, Amendment # 69 and
#496-23-Act250 Amendment #1. Property is located at Trailside Extension in the Mountain
Recreation District. Posted in the Town Hall bulletin boards and on the website on April 16, 2025
and the Post Office Bulletin Board May 6, 2025, advertised in THE VERMONT JOURNAL on
April 23, 2025 and abutting property owners were notified on April 23, 2025. Letters have been
received from Police, Ambulance and Fire Departments.

George Tucker administered the oath to Josh Sapp.



DRB Preliminary Minutes 6
May 12, 2025

13.

Josh Sapp said the HOA wants to replace the existing pool. The new pool will be located in the
same location as the old pool. It will be 30’ x 50°, running from 3’ to 6” deep. There will not be
any additions to the pool house, or heating. The new pool will be made of gunite and be recoated
every few years. The old pool is starting to crack and the filters and jets are deteriorating . The
association decided that it is time to replace the pool.

John Bohrer asked if it will be heated

Josh Sapp said yes and they will be using the same heater. He said the pool will be filled from the
existing water supply.

Doug Sheehan said he thought they were low on water

Josh Sapp said no.

Phil Carter asked about the brook by the parking area

. Josh Sapp said it is over 50’ and we are not drawing from there. We have spigots in the back and

multiple supply lines

. Julie Nicoll asked about item #3 in Chief Whalen’s letter
. Josh Sapp said they have submitted a 262 page document from MSK. They have locked in the

contract with MSK and M&M. They have the ACT250 permit and will start work by July 1st and
complete around the 1st of November, in compliance with the MOU. He said he sent the MOU to
Chief Whalen and the association is happy to move forward and have provided as much
information as needed. They will keep up the maintenance after completion.

George Tucker, Jr. read conditions #1 and #2 in Chief Whalen’s letter

Re: Trailside Pool

Mr. Sapp

This project should not create any new negative impacts on the Ludlow Fire Department.
However; I have significant concerns about the priority of life safety and property
protection at all Trailside Villages due to the status of the fire pond and hydrant systems. 1
have the following conditions for the project:

1. Approved construction, electrical, and plumbing permits shall be obtained by the
Vermont Division of Fire Safety prior to any work. All noted conditions shall be met

and the project, construction, and occupancy shall be compliant with the stated

adopted editions of NFPA 1, NFPA 101, and the Vermont Fire and Building Safety Code.

2. Rough-in and final electrical, plumbing, and rebar inspections shall be completed
by the Division of Fire Safety.

3. Provide a complete status report of the fire pond, hydrant system, and potable water
system (black hydrants) projects at Trailside. This report shall include (1) the
maintenance and operation of the potable water system, (2) maintenance of the fire
pond and connected hydrants, (3) status of the hydrant system extension to include

if the project is funded and ability to meet the previously agreed upon plan of
Compliance.



DRB Preliminary Minutes 7

May 12, 2025
4. If progress is not shown in reference to condition 3 or failure to comply with the
previously agreed upon plan of compliance is found I will not be able to sign off on
this project or other future projects.
14. Josh Sapp said that all previous required letters were submitted.
15. George Tucker, Jr. said that the Ambulance Dept. suggested having an AED on site.
16. Josh Sapp said that is something that he will have to bring to the association - this is not a town
pool.
17. Julie Nicoll asked about lighting
18. Josh Sapp said it will be the same. He said they will be adding an automatic pool over, but that
doesn’t have lighting
19. Doug Sheehan asked if the pool would be open all night.
20. Josh Sapp said from Memorial Day to Labor Day, we are considering closing it at night with the
automatic cover.
21. Doug Sheehan asked if the parking area is lit.
22. Josh Sapp said yes.
23. Doug Sheehan said pages 8 -18 are missing from the index.
24. MOTION by Julie Nicoll and seconded by Doug Sheehan to close this hearing. Motion

passed unanimously.

VII. OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARINGS FOR GPI, Inc

L.

2.

George Tucker advised that this is an application for a Flood Hazard Review and to Amend a
Conditional Use Permit for the following:

a. To construct a new retail motor fuel canopy with two dispensing islands (4 fueling
locations) in the footprint of the auto parts store/repair garage (which was approved for
removal in Conditional Use Permit #154-86/87-CU Amendment #2.)

b. To provide six additional parking spaces (for a total of 14), including one accessible
parking space adjacent to an ADA compliant ramp to the building sidewalk

c. To relocate two 8 cubic-yard dumpsters to a concrete pad, screened with a six-foot high
chain link fence with privacy slats suspended one foot above the concrete pad, as
requested by the District Floodplain Manager.

Jarrod Jowdy advised that this is Application #154-86/87-CU Amendment #3 and 481-20-FHR,
Amendment #2.. Property owner is the Melinda Richards Taggard Trust. Property is located at
129 Main Street in the Village Residential-Commercial District. Posted in the Town Hall bulletin
boards and on the website on April 16, 2025 and the Post Office Bulletin Board May 6, 2025,
advertised in THE VERMONT JOURNAL on April 23, 2025 and abutting property owners were
notified on April 25, 2025. Letters have been received from Police, Ambulance and Fire
Departments.

George Tucker administered the oath to Keith Arlund, Huseyin Sevincgil, Ned Bowen, Ben Bolen
and Jean Strong. He said that in September 2024, the property owner was given a permit to



DRB Preliminary Minutes 8
May 12, 2025

o

10.

I1.

12.

13.

14.
15.
16.
17.

18.
19.
20.

remove the former NAPA Auto Parts building and replace it with parking, plus the installation of
new fuel tanks, pipes, and concrete for the Shell gas station.
Huseyin Sevincgil said at this time, they are applying to add overhead canopy with 4 fueling
stations, additional parking spaces, and relocation and enclosure of the dumpster pad. They have
started the remodeling and replaced the tanks. He has had conversations with Chief Whalen. We
do not have flood plain directions.
Doug Sheehan asked where the 14 parking spaces are located
Huseyin Sevincgil referred to the drawing and indicated 7 spaces in front, 2 parallel . He pointed
out other spaces.
Julie Nicoll said on the original permit, there was a sidewalk in front.
Huseyin Sevincgil said he had not seen it.
Julie Nicoll showed it to him on the permit conditions. She read it into the minutes:
#3 - Concrete sidewalks shall be installed and curbed consistent with the sidewalks
presently leading to and from the applicant’s property.
George Tucker, Jr. said the plans also changed from the original permit with regard to riparian
buffer
Huseyin Sevincgil said that is still on the plan and has not been changed. He said the only change
is the head on parking and the perpendicular parking, the trash area, the canopy. He said the
parking out front was changed to make angular (2 in front of the building.) He said the route to
and the handicapped ramp were moved.
George Tucker, Jr. read the conditions in the letter from Police Chief Warfle:

e This project will produce additional traffic: It will place a burden on the roadway

e This project will require additional traffic control measures: During winter traffic hours,
there shall be no fuel or large deliveries made to this location

e Parking plans show ample spaces to support this project. Existing parking should hold 12
vehicles

e Alarm system not mandated but [ would strongly suggest one, and register any and all
alarms with the “Ludlow Police Department.”

e This project in and of itself may place an adverse impact on the Ludlow Police
Department. However, combined with all the other building in Ludlow the Department’s
ability to service the Town may be diminished.

Huseyin Sevincgil said regarding additional traffic, we are trying to be more efficient and he is
not sure how much additional traffic this will bring. He said there are other gas stations in town.
He questioned the condition about no deliveries in the winter.

Atta Ullah asked what was meant by no deliveries

George Tucker, Jr. suggested it may mean during peak traffic hours

Doug Sheehan suggested possibly 4:00 to 6:00 p.m.

Atta Ullah said we can discuss this with the Chief. We have had deliveries in the winter for the
last 19 years.

Huseyin Sevincgil said we can discuss deliveries off peak hours.

George Tucker, Jr. said we will get clarification from the Chief.

Huseyin Sevincgil said that we have 14 parking spaces, but the chief noted 12.



DRB Preliminary Minutes 9
May 12, 2025

21. George Tucker, Jr. read from the letter from Fire Chief Whalen:
22. Approved construction, electrical, and plumbing permits shall be obtained by the
e Vermont Division of Fire Safety prior to any work. All noted conditions shall be met and
the project, construction, and occupancy shall be compliant with the stated adopted
edition of NFPA 1, NFPA 101, and the Vermont Fire and Building Safety Code.
e Rough-in and final electrical, plumbing, and rebar inspections shall be completed by the
Division of Fire Safety.
e Grading shall be sloped to prevent any run off fuel going towards the neighboring
buildings, and any pumps shall have canopy’s with full suppression systems
e An AED shall be available for use within the sales area of the building

23. Huseyin Sevincgil said that the grading plan is sheet 5 of 8. He said it currently flows towards
the American Legion. We held the grade at the property lines. We created a low point and added
2 catch basins tied into 2 doghouse manholes, hydrodynamic separator. He said the sump can
hold up to 100 - 150 gallons. Rain will go into the float, not through the system. He said the
water will eddy and the sediment will settle into the hydrocarbon float if there was a minor spill

24. Doug Sheehan asked where the water will go

25. Huseyin Sevincgil said back into the river.

26. Phil Carter asked who will maintain the system

27. Huseyin Sevincgil said the operator will have O&M manual and plan - see page 26 of submittal

28. Phil Carter asked how does the plan get to the owner

29. Atta Ullah said we have companies we call. We call the Fire Marshall if we have a gas leak. This
system is new.

30. George Tucker, Jr. said that maintenance for the separator also starts on 26.

31. Phil Carter asked what rill erosion is

32. Huseyin Sevincgil said it is erosion that occurs as water runs off a hillside and cuts shallow, curvy
channels into the topsoil. He said we have a housekeeping plan

33. Phil Carter asked about the Flood Plain and the Floodway Elevation

34. Huseyin Sevincgil said there is a grading plan. The existing FEMA elevation is 997.5 feet.
Anything above is outside the Flood Plain elevation. The plan will cut the grade down to provide
additional Flood Plain Elevation. They will be filling by the trash area. There will be additional
flood plain storage and the dispenser will be above the Flood Plain elevation.

35. Phil Carter asked about the part in the floodway.

36. Huseyin Sevincgil indicated on the drawing, saying it was closer to the river. The only work in
that area is riparian plantings.

37. Phil Carter asked about the brown strip on the drawing

38. Huseyin Sevincgil said it is riprap. It was redesigned from the original

39. Phil Carter said that with the new canopy, cars will pull in - facing the river. He asked what
would happen with tricks with trailers, but how would they exit

40. Huseyin Sevincgil said that they would only have passenger cars use that lane. They will post
signs.

41. Atta Ullah said there will not be diesel fuel under that canopy



DRB Preliminary Minutes 10

May 12, 2025

42. Phil Carter asked how they would enforce the no trucks - once the truck would get in, they would
not be able to get out. Also, there would be pedestrian traffic.

43. Atta Ullah said that would be an exceptional situation. We will put up signs - no trucks and no
diesel. They can’t have 24/7 enforcement.

44. Huseyin Sevincgil said they will put up signs, NO TRUCKS, NO DIESEL

45. Phil Carter suggested aslo CARS ONLY

46. Huseyin Sevincgil suggested making one side the entrance and the other the exit

47. Doug Sheehan said people won’t pay attention

48. George Tucker, Jr. said one way in - one way out is pretty drastic. He suggested they talk to
Chief Warfle.

49. Rgg asked if there would be any charging stations.

50. Huseyin Sevincgil said no

51. Keith Arlund asked about procedure and there was no notice of the site visit

52.
53.

54.

55.
56.

57.

58.

George Tucker, Jr. said that is at the discretion of the board. It was posted in the office.
Rgg said the site review is not part of the record, there are no minutes and it is not recorded. It is
only for the board to know more about the property. Abutters may visit anytime.
Keith Arlund referenced the Village of Ludlow Zoning - Conditional uses Sections 550.4 through
7 on page 59 and said that none of this has been addressed and will it be considered by the board.
550.4 - GLARE, LIGHTS, REFLECTION
No glare, lights or reflection shall be permitted which could impair the vision of a driver
of any motor vehicle, or which are detrimental to public health, safety and welfare.
550.5 - FIRE, EXPLOSIVE OR SAFETY HAZARD
No fire, explosive or safety hazard shall be permitted which significantly endangers other
property owners, or which results in a significantly increased burden on municipal
facilities.
550.6 - STORAGE OF FLAMMABLE LIQUIDS
Refer to the Vermont Department of Labor and Industry and uphold their present
B.0.C.A. Regulations, or any new regulations when and as may be adopted referring to
storage of flammable liquids such as liquid propane gas, fuel oil, gasoline, etc. All State
regulations must be found to have been met as part of permit review procedure.
550.7 - ELECTRICAL INTERFERENCE OR HEAT
No excessive electrical interference or heat that is detectable at the boundaries of the
property shall be generated.
George Tucker, Jr. said it will all be considered.
Keith Arlund said there is a significant difference between the letter written by ChieF Kolenda
and the letter written by Chief Whalen. Distances - there is still concern about the safety impact
of fire at the pumps and our building. The letter from Chief Kolenda had more detail.
Huseyin Sevincgil said there is an existing fire suppression system and the new one will also
have a fire suppression system with positive limiting barriers and will be kept within the
dispensing areas. It will hold fire within the apron area. The fire suppression system will put out
a fire. This canopy is steel and the other one was wood. It is a pre-engineered system.
George Tucker, Jr. asked about their concern about the lights and glare



DRB Preliminary Minutes 11
May 12, 2025

59.

60.
61.

62.
63.

64.

65.
66.

67.
68.

69.
70.

71.
72.
73.

74.
75.

76.
T7.
78.
79.
80.
8l1.
82.
83.

&4.

85.
86.

Huseyin Sevincgil said the lighting plan has been submitted. There will not be new light poles
and only lights under the canopy - 3 foot candle lights will be under the canopy going to zero
further out. They need lights under the canopy.

Phil Carter asked if there would be new lights in the building

Atta Ullah said there will be 3 lights on the back of the building and no additional lights on the
building

Phil Carter asked Mr. Arlund if there are lights on the Legion by their parking area

Keith Arlund said not for parking - just off the back of the building. He asked how long it would
be before the pumps shut off if there is a spill

Huseyin Sevincgil said if there is a fuel spill, the entire system is constantly monitored., There is
a line leak detector, containment sump. Grooves will contain minor spills. There are sensors
under the pumps and interstitial space sensors that will detect any fluctuation. There must be
Class A, Class B and Class C operators.

Atta Ullah said there is an emergency switch to shut off the entire system with a loud alarm
Ned Bowen said the footprint for NAPA was closer to Main Street. He asked how vehicles will
exit and where delivery vehicles will park. He does not see how this will work

Phil Carter asked about delivery vehicles

Huseyin Sevincgil said they will enter the same as today. He said they eliminated 2 spaces and
has provided for a 30 foot u-turn,

Keith Arlund asked about a garbage truck

Huseyin Sevincgil said there is about a 55 to 60 foot space there He said the current dumpsters
were behind NAPA

Atta Ullah said there is more room now without NAPA.

Phil Carter said at the original hearing they discussed the turn around at the back of the building
Huseyin Sevincgil said they would have to pave or gravel, put in guard rails and do infrastructure
improvements

Phil Carter asked if they would be able to just pave

Huseyin Sevincgil said they would have to grade, do flood plain mitigation and put in more
lighting

Phil Carter said then there would be no vehicles around the right side of the building

Huseyin Sevincgil said yes

Phil Carter asked about snow removal

Huseyin Sevincgil said they would use the back for storage and if needed, some parking spaces
Phil Carter said those 6 spaces would then not be used in the winter??

Huseyin Sevincgil said they could use some for snow storage

Phil Carter asked what about a major storm

Huseyin Sevincgil said snow would be moved around the back - they don’t want to impede
business and lose parking spaces. If needed, they will move snow off site

Scott Baitz said the new Shell will look nice. He said the simplest route out would be behind the
Legion. It will be tough and will take more signage

Jean Strong asked about the sidewalk

George Tucker, Jr. said it is in the original permit and is reconfirmed - cement and the cut look



DRB Preliminary Minutes 12
May 12, 2025

87. Jean Strong said this is an opportunity to improve pedestrian safety in the Village. She is
concerned about pedestrians walking there when there is more traffic

88. Huseyin Sevincgil asked if the wording for the sidewalk could be different

89. George Tucker, Jr. said that under the current permit, it has to be to Town Highway specifications
and if they have any questions, they can contact Ron Tarbell about the “joint.” - the goal is to
have a uniform look for sidewalks

90. Doug Sheehan said if they exit on the right side, it will be hard to get to the gas pumps

91. George Tucker, Jr. said the Legion abuts the side - asked how many parking spaces

92. Ned Bowen said 10 spaces, 2 of which are handicapped.

93. Phil Carter asked, when existing from the Legion, can they exit through Shell

94. Keith Arlund said he goes through Cumberland Farm

95. George Tucker, Jr. said this is the biggest challenge to the Legion. People pulling through the
Legion property when they exit Shell. He asked if they would consider something to stop people
from going through the Legion property.

96. Ned Bowen said the Legion would have to be more creative with its parking

97. Atta Ullah mentioned a fence

98. Phil Carter he would not want to impede the open space between the buildings

99. Keith Arlund said that safety for our building (Legion) and people is our concern. We have never
had issues before. Ours is an old building and we put in a fire suppression system

100.  Julie Nicoll said she would like to see an updated Police letter, with clarification on deliveries
during winter traffic hours and a letter from Kile Vetter (flood plain manager)

101. MOTION by George Tucker, Jr. and seconded by Doug Sheehan to recess this hearing

until June 9th meeting.
102.  Phil Carter asked everyone to put their thoughts together regarding exit strategies and

signage.

103. Motion passed unanimously.

VIII. MINUTES- February 10, 2025 and April 12, 2025

1. February 10, 2025

a. Corrections on page 1, item II, 1 - “He said the flood doors and gates...”

b. Corrections on page 2, item III, 4 - “He said that there are a lot of habitats on Okemo of
random outbreaks and shapes.”

c. Correction on page 3, item III, 23 - “Phil Carter asked how much of the entire parcel is
encumbered.”

d. Correction on page 4, item III, 43 - “George Tucker, Jr. said it doesn’t have an isolation
shield outside of the neighbor’s isolation shield”

e. Correction on page 4, item III 64 - “Joe Tito said the retention pond...”

f. Correction on page 5, item V 4 - “Susan Balch said the upper...”
Correction on page 5, item V 10 - “George Tucker, Jr. said it was included in the Police
letter.”



DRB Preliminary Minutes 13

May 12, 2025
h. Correction on page 6, item V 27 - “Doug Sheehan asked about dinner”
i.  Correction on page 6, item VI 18 - “George Tucker, Jr. said this is a unique situation and
only a faculty of response time difference from Ludlow or other Fire departments.”
jo MOTION by Julie Nicoll and seconded by Phil Carter to accept the minutes from

February 10, 2025 as corrected. Motion passed unanimously.

2. April 12,2025

a.

b.

Clarification regarding the word used by Chief Whalen “sprinklered.” Minutes quoted
that word.
MOTION by George Tucker, Jr. and seconded by Phil Carter to accept the minutes

from April 12, 2025 as presented. Motion passed unanimously

IX. OTHER BUSINESS

1. Review status of Okemo Trailside Community Association MOU

a.

- E G

~

[a—

George Tucker, Jr. noted that MSK is the engineer and asked who is responsible for
what?

Josh Sapp said that no permit is required by the DRB - under the agreement, the other
owner should be allowed to supply the permits

George Tucker, Jr. said that COs were withheld 2 years ago. The board has the
opportunity to ask questions. The NO CO order will eventually go away

Josh Sapp said that MSK did the design for ACT250 of where the line should run and
ACT250 approved it. The contract with MSK and M&M - start July 2025 and
completion by November 2025. The MOU has a 3-year time frame and getting the
ACT250 permit took longer and we had to do all of the ACT250 parts at one time. He
added that the reference in the letter from the Fire Chief for a plan for maintenance was
not in the original Fire Department letter. He said the hydrants are flushed regularly and
the pond is inspected. We will present a plan - how often to flush, how often to dredge
the pond. We have allowed the fire department to use the pond as a testing spot
George Tucker, Jr. said that the recent incident at Trailside has brought fire safety the the
forefront

Josh Sapp said that we have never denied the fire department testing or training. We
want safety for the homeowners.

Jarrod Jowdy asked if the pool is used as part of the fire suppression system

Josh Sapp said yes - that is an option.

George Tucker, Jr. asked what will be the middle of the project

Josh Sapp said by October.

Josh Sapp said he would be able to provide paperwork update and communication that
was sent to the homeowners.

George Tucker, Jr. asked to have copies sent to Jarrod Jowdy.

Josh Sapp said the updates will come from MSK.



DRB Preliminary Minutes 14
May 12, 2025

n. Next update August 12th.
2. Review bi-weekly letters from the Mill as a condition of their MOU

a. There were no questions or comments

VIII. ADJOURN

1. MOTION by George Tucker., Jr. and seconded by John Bohrer to adjourn. Motion passed

unanimously.
2. Meeting adjourned at 8:12 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted

Lisha Klaiber
George Tucker, Jr., Chairman Julie Nicoll
John Boehrer Doug Sheehan

Phil Carter



